
Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Agenda  
Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 – 8:00 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City  

Meeting simulcast via GoToMeeting 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/468563221 

             Kyra Rohner, President 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 1 of 8 

I. CALL TO ORDER        Rohner 

II. Consent agenda (ACTION)       Rohner 
a. Additions/deletions from the agenda 
b. Minutes of previous meeting 

III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest     Rohner 

IV. Open forum for general public, comments & communications  Rohner 
In the interests of time and to allow as many members of the public an 
opportunity to speak, the board asks guests to limit remarks to five (5) minutes if 
speaking on behalf of an individual, or ten (10) minutes if speaking on behalf of a 
group or organization. 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Report on Pandemic Response Activities     Stokes  

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Swearing in of newly elected Directors    Stokes 

b. Election of 2021-22 officers (ACTION)    Stokes 

c. Establishing regular meeting time (ACTION)  President-elect 

d. Appointing agents of record (ACTION)    President-elect 

e. Authorizing auto-pay for select vendors 2021-22 (ACTION)     President-elect 

f. Authorizing audit engagement letter (ACTION)  Stokes/Hawes 
VII. REPORTS 

a. Director        Stokes 

b. Finance        Hawes 

VIII. Next meeting:  Sep 13, 2021      President-elect 

IX. ADJOURNMENT       President-elect 

 
    

The times of all agenda items except open forum are approximate and are subject to change. Other 
matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session may 
be held in accordance with the following. Topics marked with an asterisk* are scheduled for the 
current meeting's executive session.  

ORS 192.660 (2) (d) Labor Negotiations   ORS 192.660 (2) (e, j) Property 
ORS 192.660 (2) (h) Legal Rights   ORS 192.660 (2) (a, b, i) Personnel 

 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/468563221


Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 2 of 8 

Annotated Agenda 
I. CALL TO ORDER         Rohner 

II. Consent agenda (ACTION)       Rohner 
a. Additions/deletions from the agenda 
b. Minutes of previous meeting 

Attachments: 

 II.b.i. Board meeting minutes, Jun 14 2021  
 

III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest     Rohner 

IV. Open forum for general public, comments & communications  Rohner 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Report on Pandemic Response Activities     Stokes  

COVID-19 cases are surging in Eastern Oregon. 

 BCLD will maintain a policy of masks optional unless/until the state requires 
masks again for indoor spaces. For now, the chance of that is reportedly slim due to 
lack of “political will”. 

 Masks are highly recommended for staff in close contact with others -- When shift 
duties involve working closely with others (within 6 feet) for more than 5 minutes, staff 
are strongly encouraged to wear a mask (Preferably N95 type, library will continue to 
provide), but this will remain a personal choice.  Staff are encouraged to discuss 
concerns with me or other managerial staff. 

 

https://www.oregonlive.com/data/2021/08/see-how-vaccination-rates-compare-with-covid-cases-for-all-36-oregon-counties.html?
https://www.oregonlive.com/news/2021/08/with-few-mandates-oregon-takes-mostly-hands-off-approach-as-covid-19-rages-in-oregon.html
https://www.oregonlive.com/news/2021/08/with-few-mandates-oregon-takes-mostly-hands-off-approach-as-covid-19-rages-in-oregon.html
https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/oregon.health.authority.covid.19/viz/OregonCOVID-19Update/DailyDataUpdate


Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 3 of 8 

 

https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2021/us/baker-oregon-covid-cases.html


Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 

For more information see Baker cases report from NYT at 

https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2021/us/baker-oregon-covid-cases.html  

 

Positive takeaway - Vaccination highly effective to prevent serious illness & 
hospitalization.  Fewer fatalities due to transmission mostly in lower age ranges. Older 
age groups protected with vaccination.  

 

https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2021/us/baker-oregon-covid-cases.html
https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2021/us/baker-oregon-covid-cases.html
https://www.bluemountaineagle.com/capital_bureau/oregon-covid-19-spike-will-last-into-fall-projections-say/article_f579724c-400d-553a-8e06-7c2ef19a2be2.html#utm_campaign=blox&utm_source=facebook&utm_medium=social


Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 5 of 8 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Swearing in of newly elected Directors    Stokes 

ORS 357.236(2) on “Election of board members; vacancy” states that “Each district board 
member elected shall take an oath of office and shall hold office from July 1, next following 
election.”  
 
The Baker County Clerk has provided written oath forms for elected officials to sign. If the 
Board desires, we can also have a verbal oath ceremony. 
 

b. Election of 2021-22 officers (ACTION)    Stokes 
At the July meeting the Board elects its officers, President and Vice President, for the fiscal 
year.  For the previous year, Kyra has served as President and Betty as Vice President.   

c. Establishing regular meeting time (ACTION)  President-elect 
Attachments: 

 VI.c.i. Resolution No. 2021-22.01 
The Board must annually adopt a resolution setting its regular meeting time. At the June 
meeting, the Board consensus was to continue the current regular meeting time as the second 
Monday of the month at 6.00p. The proposed resolution establishes that regular meeting 
schedule. I am proposing one exception in which we move to 11/15/21, the 3rd Monday of 
November. 

d. Appointing agents of record (ACTION)    President-elect 
Attachments: 

 VI.d.i. Resolution No. 2021-22.02 
The District must annually appoint its insurance agents of record. We have one agent, Clarke & 
Clarke, which assists the district with general liability, property insurance, and employee health 
insurance benefits which we currently get through Special Districts Association of Oregon. 
Clarke & Clarke representatives have been very helpful. The attached resolution affirms the 
Clarke & Clarke firm as insurance agent of record for the coming year. 

e.  Authorizing auto-pay for select vendors 2021-22 (ACTION)  President-elect 
Attachments: 

 VI.e.i. Resolution No. 2021-22.03   

This resolution enables the district to set up automatic electronic payments on standard billing 
items as listed, primarily utilities, corporate and payroll costs. This will make the process more 
efficient and save time and expense for the board and Business Manager of paying these bills 
by check. The expenses will be disclosed in a monthly financial report. 

f. Authorizing audit engagement letter    Stokes/Hawes 
Attachments: 

 VI.f.i. Engagement letter of financial audit firm  



Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 6 of 8 

 VI.f.ii. Letter of communication to Board Members 

Hawes and I have both read the Engagement Letter and approve of the services.  The second letter is 
specifically addressed to the board is presented for the board to read.  The information is intended 
solely for the information and use of management and board of directors. It notifies the board of the 
upcoming audit schedule and scope. Unless there is objection, I will proceed with signing the 
engagement agreement. 

 

 

 

VII.  REPORTS 
a. Director        Stokes 

 
Friends & Foundation  

Friends annual Summer Book Sale – The sale event was a success, with a net of 
approximately $2,700. The event is held during Miners’ Jubilee and runs through the 
following weekend.    

Foundation investment fund – After evaluating several local financial advisory firms, the 
Foundation recently opened an account with the local office of Edward Jones so that its 
fund balance can grow from investment returns. This also enables us to conveniently 
refer possible donors to the Edward Jones office for making their contributions directly.  

Facilities & vehicles 
HVAC system – refinements continue. We have found the need to replace some 
switches and sensors. Ed has faced challenges finding parts for our old system but has 
been able to creatively source materials. 

Garden Room door handle lock – internal lock mechanism being replaced due to failure 
from wear and tear. These old parts also are a challenge to replace. 

Book drop insert upgrades – completed at Halfway and Baker front entrance. The new 
units have better weather protection and are “touchless”, allowing patrons to just push 
items in without needing to grab and pull the drop open.  Drive-up window and Baker 
front desk units will be replaced also. We aim to relocate the front desk unit so that 
patrons being served at the point of service aren’t interrupted by patrons needing to 
return items at that same spot. 

Sinkhole in north parking lot – repaired with assistance of Baker City Public Works.  

Sprinkler system damage – Whether intentional vandalism or not, Ed continues to 
struggle with finding broken sprinkler heads and lines. Whenever possible, he replaces 
sprinkler spray heads with soaker and drip hoses, which helps avoid damage from being 
stepped on and also helps conserve water.  
 



Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 7 of 8 

Window tinting for branches – Halfway and Richland are scheduled to have reflective 
window tint installed in September to help with climate control and energy efficiency. 

Grants 
HVAC rebates – Thanks to Ed’s pursuit of rebates available for energy efficiencies of our 
air handling system controls upgrade, the district received two rebate checks: 

o 8/01/2021, Energy Trust of Oregon $7,479.00 
o 8/06/2021, OTEC $4,809.64 

Both of these will be deposited into the General Fund, totaling $12,288, and will be 
repurposed for more energy efficiency with an upgrade of the Boiler to modulating 
burners. 
 
Worksource LSTA mini-grant – We have received a grant of $9,000 for a project to help 
facilitate job seekers and development of job skills in collaboration with the State 
Library. Each branch will have a dedicated laptop available to Worksource clients with 
peripheral devices for professional presentations and webconferencing. Equipment has 
been ordered from Costco.  

 
Programs & services 

Sage ILL Courier change - Due to a cost-prohibitive cost increase, as of early July Sage 
Interlibrary Loan materials destined for Ontario now are making a layover first at Baker 
before completing their transit.  This does involve some extra labor and space 
requirements from Baker. Staff are monitoring the extra volume and labor in case we 
need to request compensation in some form from Sage. 

Non-Fiction DVDs – Due to space and storage challenges, our non-fiction DVD discs are 
no longer stored behind the front desk and are kept in their cases on the shelves. We 
believe the theft risk for this category of materials is very low compared to the feature 
films, which needed additional space and will continue to be stored in desk drawers for 
security.  

3-D Printing – As an outgrowth of our Makers’ Club and Kits program, staff are preparing 
to offer basic 3-D printing to the public. Two printers will be situated in the front lobby 
to call attention to the new service. Staff are currently developing procedures. 

Oregonian daily edition by mail discontinued – We now are able to offer the daily 
Oregonian newspaper in digital format only through our NewsBank database. The 
publisher has stopped mailing out print copies.  

 

Personnel 
October staff training event - Tentatively scheduled for Monday, Oct 25. We usually 
have this event on the Indigenous Peoples’ Day (Columbus Day) holiday. I’m aiming to 
get away from that practice in order to allow staff to be able to celebrate the day. We 



Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Aug 9, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-08-08 

Page 8 of 8 

will provide the public plenty of advanced notice that the library will be closed for 
training on that date.  
 

Safety & Security 

Bookmobile break-in / theft - Discovered 7/30/21. Thief entered through passenger side window 
due to a faulty latch. Missing items (known to date) include roadside safety kit, batteries. The 
latch has been fixed and we are pursuing additional security strategies. 

 
Technology 

Internet Filtering – IT Manager was able to make corrections to our privacy and filtering 
system configurations after public and staff reports of explicit adult imagery and files 
being discovered on public workstations. Google SafeSearch is now implemented at the 
network level 
 
Upgrade of SAM public computer management system – I have approved upgrade of 
our public computer management software to a new version, which will be a significant 
improvement. We will also add two new modules, for booking of study and meeting 
room spaces and for mobile printing. The upgrade does require an update of our SQL 
server (currently 2008 version).  
Expansion of Loanable WiFi Hotspot Program – For an opportunity to get more federal 
program grant funds, Christine has been acquiring bids on a suite of additional WiFi 
hotspots which we would make available for public checkout. In contrast to the units 
the library currently offers which are designed for student use and block most 
recreational use, this set would allow a broader range of content but still be managed 
by the district’s content filtering. The deadline for requesting this funding is this week. 
 

b. Finance        Hawes 
Report documents to be distributed at the meeting. 

 

VIII. Next meeting:  Sep 13, 2021       President-elect 

Please let me know if you have any agenda items to request. 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT        President-elect 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 1 of 10 

 

Call to Order The meeting was held in the Riverside conference room at the Baker 
County Public Library, 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon, the 
administrative building for the District. Those attending the meeting 
in person included Directors Kyra Rohner, Betty Palmer, Gary 
Dielman, and Beth Bigelow.  Also attending are Perry Stokes, 
Director and Christine Hawes, Business Manager. 
 
President of the board, Kyra Rohner, called the meeting to order at 
6:00pm.  Stokes displayed the GoToMeeting virtual connection on 
the screen, but there was no one attending remotely. 
 

Consent Agenda Rohner asked for any additions or deletions to the agenda or 
minutes of the previous meeting.  There were none.  Bigelow made a 
motion to approve the minutes as presented; Palmer seconded; 
motion passed unanimously (4 yea). 

Conflicts of 
Interest 

Rohner asked if there were any conflicts or potential conflicts of 
interest to be declared.  There were none. 

Public Comment Rohner noted that there were no members of the public present.  
She asked Stokes if he had any correspondence to share.  There were 
none. 
 
It was noted that the meeting was being broadcast and available to 
the public from our website but that no one had logged in. 

NEW BUSINESS: 
Fiscal Year 2020-
21 Supplemental 
Budget adoption 

Rohner passed the meeting to Stokes to introduce the supplemental 
budget. 
 
Stokes said that he had printed a brief version of the packets that 
were available online.  He displayed the supplemental budget 
documents on the screen for review as he talked about them.  
 
The Supplemental budget documents include moving funds around 
to cover lines that are over spent.  He started with a summary sheet 
that outline changes to the General Fund showing an increase of 
$48,529.  Both the Other Funds and Capital Reserve fund have no 
changes.  There are some changes to the Sage Fund which the Sage 
Council approved.  The Sage Fund decreased by $15,000. 
 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 2 of 10 

 

Looking at the General Fund summary sheets, Stokes highlighted 
items of interest on those pages. Looking at the detail sheets, Form 
LB-20 Resources, he has added the adjustment column for the 
Supplemental 2 budget.  The district has increased the prior year 
taxes by $50,000 as these were higher than estimated; fines & fees is 
being increased to $12,000; Insurance proceeds (Cares Act funds) is 
being decreased by $40,000 funds. These funds were depleted faster 
than anticipated. In total, resources are being reduced by $23,950. 
 
District salaries are being adjusted for lines that need it.  He 
reviewed each line and benefit lines; overall decreasing by $3,500. 
 
Looking at LB-31, Materials & Services, Building and Grounds is 
decreased to more closely match actual pandemic funds received.  
The janitorial line is decreased by $30,000; Stokes had anticipated 
hiring cleaning services at each branch, but that ultimately wasn’t 
necessary.  Supplies are decreased $5,000.  Utilities are decreased by 
$1,500; Telecommunications are decreased by $600.  M&S in total 
are decreased by $52,000.  With all of the changes listed, the 
contingency funds are decreased by $57,000 with an overall 
decrease in Requirements of $23,950. 
 
Rohner asked about the need to publish the supplemental budget.  
Stokes said the changes were small and well under the 10% criteria 
that requires it to be published. 
 
The resolution information is summarized by fund.  Total adopted 
budget of $2,277,048 plus unappropriated funds and reserve 
amounts of $637,087 brings us to a total adopted budget of 
$2,914,135. 
 
Rohner asked if there were any questions; there were none.  
Dielman moved to adopt Resolution No 2020-21.08 adopting 
Supplemental Budget 2 as presented; Bigelow seconded; motion 
passed unanimously (4 yea). 
 
Rohner signed the adopted resolution. 

Fiscal Year 2021-
22 Budget hearing 

Rohner moved to the budget hearing and adoption.  Stokes had no 
changes from the Budget Committee Meeting.  The budget approved 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 3 of 10 

 

and adoption by the Budget Committee is included in the packets.  It has been 
published in the Baker City Herald, the Hells Canyon Journal and 
available online.  Rohner asked for a copy of the resolution.  Stokes 
handed out a copy for each director to read. 
 
After reading through the resolution, Rohner noted a type error, 
changing the year from 2020 to 2021 manually.  Palmer asked if we 
needed to adopt the resolution making appropriations, the tax rate 
and categorizing the tax.  Stokes didn’t feel that was needed.   
 
With no further discussion, Palmer moved to adopt Resolution No 
FY2020-21.09, the Board of Directors hereby adopts the budget for 
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 for the library funds and including the Sage 
Library System fund; Dielman seconded; passed unanimous (4 yea). 
 
Rohner signed the adopted resolution. 

2021 May 
Election results 

Rohner moved to the May election result item. Stokes had included 
a report on the last 3 times the district had a levy measure on the 
ballot.  The turnout from 2016 to 2021 is about the same.  The 
passage percentage was 70% this year compared to 83% in 2016; 
passing percentage this year is closer to the 2011 results of 65%.   
 
Stokes feels the diminished percentage is more related to consumer 
confidence; there was a recession in 2011 and the pandemic this 
year has had an economic impact.  A school bond measure was on 
the ballot this year, as well, which may have impacted the vote 
result.   
 
Stokes would like to do a community survey to get feedback on the 
reduced support for the library.  Dielman feels that the percentage 
that the levy passed with is healthy, the community has always 
supported the library.  Stokes said he would like to focus on 
precincts with low support or possibly those with the most voters.  
Discussion continued.  
 
Palmer wants to know if people that voted no, use the library. 
Stokes said that there were no paid advertisements for the library 
levy.  There were several “good news articles” on what the library 
was doing.   



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 4 of 10 

 

 
Stokes was pleased to note that all precincts passed the levy. 2011 
was the last time the levy failed in any precinct; that was Keating 
barely at 49%; whereas in 2021 they supported it by 68%.  The 
greatest decline in support from 2016 was in Durkee. Bookmobile 
were discontinued down there due to low use, which may be a 
factor. There was discussion on other areas with low support.  
Discussion continued on precinct areas to focus on building support.   
 
Discussion of how the pandemic affected the library and its services.  
Some libraries were closed until just recently.  Whereas this library 
reopened last July with limited services and has remained open 
entirely since.  Recently, with both main doors open for visitors, we 
are seeing increased traffic in visitors. 
 
Stokes felt it was commendable that the levy passed with no 
advertising, similar to the weed and vector control measures.  
 
Stokes referenced the results of the election for the three directors 
who ran for reelection to the library board.  All three were 
reinstated.  Stokes asked if there would be any changes to the 
officers.  Betty Palmer said this will likely be her last term on the 
library board.  She has other things she will be doing.  She was willing 
to let someone else be the vice-president. With no further comment, 
he moved on to the meeting calendar. 
 

Calendar of 
monthly meeting 
dates 

Stokes asked about the date and time of the monthly regular 
meetings. Everyone agreed that they are happy with Mondays at 
6:00pm.  There were no changes to the time and day of the week.  
Stokes will prepare a resolution for the next meeting. 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
None 

None 
 

REPORTS: 
Director 

Stokes wanted to allow an ADA accommodation for mask 
requirements but Special Districts recommend against it.  He 
announced that masks continue to be required by the State, 
occupancy controls were lifted, both Resort St and riverside are 
doors open, the bathrooms are open and time in the library is non-



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 5 of 10 

 

restricted.  Stokes provided juice and cookies for patrons coming in 
as a celebration of the relaxed restrictions until supplies ran out.  
Celebration supplies were also sent out to the branches. 
 
Stokes reported about one library in Eastern Oregon that had a 
policy of checking vaccination cards to allow those people to be 
exempted from wearing masks. However, many in the community 
were very angry at the segregation, allowing some but not others. 
He follows a variety of media sites to keep current on what is 
happening in social and political circles and with other libraries.  That 
awareness led to the decision to stick with masks being required for 
everyone.  A Baker City Herald news article helped to explain the 
change from anticipating not requiring masks, to why the district 
changed to require them until State restrictions are lifted. 
 
Stokes reported Oregon is nearing the end of the pandemic 
restrictions.  A 70% vaccination goal is projected for the state before 
the end of June.  Stokes described methods of training and 
supporting staff when dealing with angry people.   
 
Some district staff want to be able to remove their masks in the 
workroom.  Those that voluntarily submit a copy of their vaccination 
card will be allowed to do that.  Staff will continue to wear a mask at 
the front desk or in the patron area to avoid confusion and 
confrontations.  The volunteers who are returning are following the 
same protocol. 
 
Additional federal funding for Special Districts was not approved. 
 
The new life insurance option through SDAO didn’t happen; Special 
Districts didn’t have enough interest to meet the minimum number 
needed. 
 
Stokes is watching the developments on legislation for homeless 
camps on government property.  There was a case recently in 
Federal District Court, 9th Circuit which ruled that if there are no 
shelters available, a city cannot criminalize sleeping on public 
property.  This will have repercussions for all kinds of local 
governments.  We may, however, be able to establish time-place-
manner restrictions.  Another bill may require 3 days’ notice in order 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 6 of 10 

 

to have someone leave. We are waiting for Special Districts to 
develop guidance on this topic. 
 
Facilities: 
Energy rebates - Ed has applied for two energy rebates.  We 
anticipate a rebate of about $10,000 from the HVAC system 
upgrade.  Ed would like to repurpose that money to upgrade the 
boiler with more efficient modulating boiler burners. 
 
Vehicles – The battery on SUV had to be replaced. 
 
Public telephone - Last year, the public courtesy telephone was 
removed because it was broken.  With the pandemic closure we 
didn’t replace it.  Now that we are open, Stokes looked at other 
options.  He is looking at going with Voice-over-Internet Protocol 
(VOIP) unit.  With the previous phone, we had to block long distance 
calls which are costly.  The VoIP unit would allow free or low-cost 
long distance calls.  He described the unfortunate repercussions of 
long distance numbers being blocked, mainly that some people’s cell 
phones register as long distance calls and we occasionally had to 
allow a juvenile patron to use the front desk phone.  He found an 
outdoor public telephone unit with a hood and sturdy construction.  
He is looking at an outdoor location at the northwest corner of the 
building which will be available for people to use 24/7.  A unit is on 
order.  Having the phone outdoors will eliminate disruption and 
awkwardness from personal conversations in the lobby service area. 
 
Marketing & Publicity: 
Wowbrary – the weekly email newsletter is being sent out to about 
3,200 recipients.  The Newsletter automatically pulls data from the 
catalog to create lists of newly added items. 
 
As mentioned earlier, the Baker City Herald had a nice article on the 
change in our face mask policy. 
 
Operations & Services: 
Library Elf – we have launched a new software solution for families 
that have cards for every one of their kids.  It allows for one person 
to manage multiple accounts, keeping track of due dates, text and 
email notifications and late notices. 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 7 of 10 

 

 
Hoopla – Stokes is looking to expand digital content access. Hoopla 
is a popular service for libraries which offers many more eBook and 
eAudio options.  He described how the checkout system works. The 
cost-per-checkout pricing model is expensive, but is managed by 
giving patrons a limited number of checkout credits each month. 
 
BrainFuse – The district is switching to this vendor to replace 
Tutor.com online for student homework help. It will also offer help 
for job seekers and is being provided to Oregon libraries by the State 
Library with federal recovery act funds.  
 
Tech-Talk – This subscription will provide a database of computer 
tips and offers patrons a weekly newsletter.  It is partially funded by 
the State Library. 
 
Programming & Outreach: 
Youth Services – the Summer Reading Program is under way.  Most 
of the programs will be outdoors. 
 
After the book sale, we hope to have the entire meeting room 
available for use.  We are struggling for space for ILL materials 
coming in and book storage 
 
Volunteers are returning.  It is great to welcome them back.   
 
The Friends are taking appointments for large book donations. They 
are planning to do the book sale with Miners Jubilee.  The staff sort 
small donations. 
 
Safety & Security: 
Outdoor outlet vandalism - someone broke the cover off of the 
exterior electrical outlet at the southwest corner of the building.  
This has happened before.  That outlet is used for the bookmobile.  
Ed is looking at a heavy duty solution.  Since this has happened 
before, Stokes plans to have a camera installed for a view of that end 
of the building.  There has also been occasional camping in that area. 
 

Finance Hawes had printed finance reports available to hand out and had 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 8 of 10 

 

also sent Stokes scanned copies electronically.  Complete set of 
reports were also emailed to board members. 
 
General fund received tax turnovers of $33,175.85 on June 1st.  
There is usually another turnover at the end of June (last year that 
was $20,000).  The distict received a Teen Services grant of $1,500 
from the Oregon State Library.  E-Rate funds of $417 were received 
June 11; there will be another $1,759 coming at the end of the 
month.  The total E-Rate funding for the year will be about $6,948.  
This does not include the reimbursements approved for the Baker 
Library Internet provider, Link Oregon, who bills USAC directly. Other 
revenues include the agency fee, Sage paid its annual Administrative 
fee of $1,857 on May 27.  And General Fund received the budgeted 
transfer of $6,000 from Other Funds-Memorial from the book sale 
proceeds.    
 
Personnel Services is at 95% spent.  There are 12 months of group 
insurance and PERS retirement payments on the books.  There will 
be accrual adjustments to post after June 30 as this module doesn’t 
automatically make the accruals but there is plenty of room for the 
adjustments. 
 
In Materials & Services, starting with the book budget is at 74% 
spent.  A check was written for Ingram of $3,584.14 for monthly 
book order, plus there were purchases on the visa including books 
$352.40, electronic subscription for Tech-Talk $397.00 and DVD 
purchases of $1,102.51.  The Janitorial contract of $2,200 was paid 
on June 1.  Computer Maintenance includes a GoDaddy hosting 
subscription of $407.76 that was also on VISA.  Bookmobile 
maintenance will be re-titled Vehicle maintenance, and includes 
from visa $535.68 for tires for one of the library vehicles.  A check 
was written to the Baker County Clerk for $6,221.38 for the District’s 
portion of the May special election for three of the board members. 
The Board will note that the Marketing & Publication line is 
overspent and will be adjusted with the Supplemental Budget.  
Stokes has been focusing on marketing and getting out positive 
information about the library.  Youth Programs includes VISA charges 
of $686.98 for Summer Reading Program (SRP) supplies.  Missy is 
doing a district-wide program, purchasing for all of the branches and 
then taking them out to the branch staff.  In Utilities, the Sumpter 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 9 of 10 

 

Heating Fuel line is overspent due to catching up the last of the prior 
year utilities of $984; I estimate another $500 will be due for January 
through June utilities (the library 50% share). An email requesting an 
invoice will go out tomorrow.   
 
And finally, in Debt Service, a check to the City of Baker City was 
written on May 27 for $1,000 and then mailed when the invoice was 
received.  This was the second of the semi-annual payments made 
each fiscal year.  A Current Cash Report follows the General fund 
financial report for you to review. 
 
The Other Funds financial report shows income from Amazon book 
sales of $147.48 for May.  The two recent months’ revenues were 
$454 in April and $517 in march; a total year-to-date revenue of 
$3,011.  This fund wrote a check to Visa for $69.42 for book shipping 
costs and it transferred $6,000 from the book sale proceeds to the 
General Fund.  A check was written to American Digital Memories on 
May 27 for $4,057.75 for the digitization project.  A Current Cash 
Report follows the financial report and a detailed report of the 
memorial funds by designation. 
 
The Sage Funds financial report shows reimbursements of $1,168.20 
from member libraries that use the CatExpress subscription.  In 
Materials & Services, Sage paid the annual agency fee to the General 
Fund of $1,857 on May 27.  A check was written to Orbis Cascade for 
$2,250 on May 27 for courier services added for a new library, 
Ontario Community College library.  And 5 checks were written for 
monthly invoices due to small couriers totaling $1,726.95.  A check 
was written to Marchive $1,579.50 for technical services.  I asked 
Beth about the Marchive services as there are also payments to this 
vendor on her visa.  She responded that Sage uses two services, this 
one is an “annual charge for keeping our authority records up to 
date”.  The other service is for record changes and additions that are 
done each month.  A Current Cash Report follows the financial 
report. 
 
I have been going through the budget line details looking for things 
that need attention.  I will be sending out emails to the branch staff 
for yearend information and reporting reminders.  Payroll for Sage 
will be paid on June 30 to simplify the interfund activity between 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

 

Page 10 of 10 

 

Sage and General Fund.  General Fund payroll will be paid on July 1 
as usual. 
 
There were no questions. 
 

Next Meeting Rohner said that the next regular board meeting will be July 12, 
2021.  Two board members said they will be gone; Betty and Beth.  
After some discussion, Stokes recommended that we cancel the July 
meeting.  He can push housekeeping to the August 9 meeting. 
 
Everyone agreed that the meeting would be cancelled. 
 

Adjourn The meeting was adjourned at 7:08pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Perry Stokes 
Secretary to the Board 
PS/ch 

 











BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD  

 

Resolution No. 2021-22.01 

Establishing a regular meeting 
day, time, and location for the year 

Aug 9 2021 
 
 

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Baker County Library District shall 

meet monthly on the second Monday of the month at 6.00 pm in the 

Riverside Community Meeting Room of the Baker County Public Library 

located at 2400 Resort Street in Baker City during the 2021-2022 fiscal year, 

with the following exception(s) : 

Nov 15 2021 

 
ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Baker County Library District this 9th day of 
August, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  NAYS:  ABSTAINED:  

  
 

  
   FOR THE BOARD:  

      Signature 
 Presiding Officer, BCLD Board 
  
  

ATTEST:   

 Signature:  Perry Stokes  
 District Secretary  

 

 
 



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD  

 

Resolution No. 2021-22.02 

Appointing Insurance Agent of Record 
Aug 9 2021 

 
 

WHEREAS, BCLD purchases insurance products from the Special Districts Association of Oregon 
(SDAO), and SDAO requires special districts to annually affirm their agents of record;  
 
Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that the Baker County Library District Board of Directors 
appoints Clarke & Clarke Insurance of Baker City, Oregon, as the District's Insurance Agent of 
Record. 

 
ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Baker County Library District this 9th day of 
August, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  NAYS:  ABSTAINED:  

  
 

  
   FOR THE BOARD:  

      Signature 
 Presiding Officer, BCLD Board 
  
  

ATTEST:   

 Signature:  Perry Stokes  
 District Secretary  

 

 
 



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD  

 

Resolution No. 2021-22.03 

Authorizing vendors for online and  
automatic payment of bills in 2021-22 

Aug 9 2021 
 

WHEREAS, many companies allow electronic payment for products and services; and  

WHEREAS, paying online and automatically rather than by paper check would save the Baker County 

Library District time and money; and 

WHEREAS, Baker County Library District’s Financial Management policy allows for such online payments; 

Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that the Baker County Library District Board of Directors authorizes the 
following vendors for online payments and deposits in fiscal year 2021-22: 
 
Online payments automatically deducted: 

 AFLAC (group supplement insurance) 

 BendTel Inc (telephone, Baker) 

 Cascade Natural Gas (heating, Baker) 

 Cascade Reliance (telephone & Internet, Haines) 

 CenturyLink Qwest (telephone & Internet, Sumpter) 

 CenturyLink CenturyTel (telephone, Internet, Huntington) 

 City of Baker City (water) 

 City of Haines (water) 

 City of Halfway (water) 

 City of Huntington (water) 

 Deluxe Inc (deposit books, check order-OF, Sage) 

 Idaho Power (electricity, Halfway, Huntington) 

 Intuit QuickBooks (electronic payroll) 

 Intuit QuickBooks (check order- General fund) 

 Lincoln Financial Group (group life insurance) 

 Oregon Department of Revenue (state payroll taxes) 

 Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS, retirement) 

 Oregon Savings Growth Plan (retirement) 

 Oregon Trail Electric (electricity, Baker, Haines) 

 US Treasury (IRS, federal payroll taxes) 

 Verizon (management cell phones, bookmobile hot spot) 
 
Online deposits automatically applied: 

 PayPal (visa transactions) 

 Oregon State Library (grant funds) 

 



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD  

 

Resolution No. 2021-22.03 

Authorizing vendors for online and  
automatic payment of bills in 2021-22 

Aug 9 2021 
 

 
ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Baker County Library District this 9th day of 
August, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  NAYS:  ABSTAINED:  

  
 

  
   FOR THE BOARD:  

      Signature 
 Presiding Officer, BCLD Board 
  
  

ATTEST:   

 Signature:  Perry Stokes  
 District Secretary  

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
July 16, 2021 
 
Board of Directors 
Baker County Library District 
 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
This letter is provided in connection with our engagement to audit the financial statements of Baker County Library 
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we communicate with you 
certain items including our responsibilities with regard to the financial statement and the planned scope and timing 
of our audit.  
 
Our Responsibilities 
 
As stated in our engagement letter dated July 16, 2021, we are responsible for conducting our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America for the purpose of forming and 
expressing an opinion(s) about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by management, with your 
oversight, are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Our audit does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

 
Our responsibility as it relates to required supplementary information is to evaluate its presentation for the purpose 
of forming and expressing an opinion as to whether the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Planned Scope of the Audit 
 
Our audit will include examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas 
to be tested. Our audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free of material misstatement, whether due to error, fraudulent financial reporting, 
misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or governmental regulations. Because of this concept of reasonable 
assurance and because we will not examine all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and 
not be detected by us. 
 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including its internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and as a basis for designing the 
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. However, we will communicate to you at the conclusion of 
our audit, significant matters that are relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process, 
including any material weaknesses, significant deficiencies, and violation of laws or regulations that come to our 
attention. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 2 of 2 

The timing of our audit will be scheduled for performance and completion as follows:  
 

 Begin Complete 

 
Document internal control and preliminary tests 

July 26-27 July 26-27 

 
Observe physical inventories (if necessary) 

 
NA 

 
NA 

 
Mail confirmations 

July 28 July 28 

 
Perform year-end audit procedures 

September 20-24 September 20-24 

 
Issue audit report 

 
End of October 

 
End of October 

 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of management and board of directors and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Robert Gaslin, CPA 
Baker City, OR 
 
July 16, 2021 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
July 16, 2021 

 

To: Management and the Board of Directors                                                                                                   
Baker County Library District                                                                                                                                
2400 Resort Street                                                                                                                                                 
Baker City, OR 97814 

 

Dear Perry Stokes and the Board of Directors: 

 
The following represents our understanding of the services we will provide to Baker County Library 
District. 

You have requested that we audit the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the District, as of June 30, 2021, and for the year then ended and the 
related notes, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by 
means of this letter. Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on each 
opinion unit applicable to those basic financial statements. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP,) as promulgated 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that Management Discussion and 
Analysis, the major governmental fund budgetary comparison schedules, certain pension schedules and 
the Auditor’s comments required by Oregon Minimum Standards be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we 
will apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAS). These limited 
procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods of measurement 
and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI 
is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be 
audited: 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
Major Governmental Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
Pension Schedules 
Auditor’s Comments Required by Oregon Minimum Standards 
 



 

© 2020 CCH Incorporated and/or Its Affiliates. All Rights Reserved.        COR-201 Page 2 of 8 

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the District’s basic financial statements. We 
will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of 
the basic financial statements and perform certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling the supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in 
accordance with U.S. GAAS. We intend to provide an opinion on the following supplementary 
information in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole: 
 
Non-Major Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
Schedule of Property Tax Transactions 
 
 
Auditor Responsibilities 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental 
regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the basic financial statements. If appropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary 
evidence that support the transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of 
inventories, and direct confirmation of cash, investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by 
correspondence with creditors and financial institutions. As part of our audit process, we will request 
written representations from your attorneys, and they may bill you for responding. At the conclusion of 
our audit, we will also request certain written representations from you about the basic financial 
statements and related matters. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements (whether caused by errors, fraudulent financial 
reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or governmental regulations) may not be 
detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS 
Oregon state audit requirements. 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the basic financial statements that we 
have identified during the audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our 
audit and does not extend to any other periods. 



 

© 2020 CCH Incorporated and/or Its Affiliates. All Rights Reserved.        COR-201 Page 3 of 8 

We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in 
which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. 
If our opinions on the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons 
with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have 
not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this 
engagement.  

Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

As previously discussed, as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with the 
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit 
will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion. 
 
Management Responsibilities 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

a. For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America  

b. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of 
laws, governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements; and 

c. To provide us with: 
i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of the basic financial statements such as records, documentation, and 
other matters; 

ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; 
and 

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 

d. For including the auditor’s report in any document containing basic financial statements that 
indicates that such basic financial statements have been audited by the entity’s auditor; 

e. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to 
its activities; 

f. For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under 
audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a 
whole; and 

g. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest 
work; 

h. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding 
assets; 

i. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management, 
employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material 
effect on the financials; and 



 

© 2020 CCH Incorporated and/or Its Affiliates. All Rights Reserved.        COR-201 Page 4 of 8 

j. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided. 
 

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility: (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable 
criteria; (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary 
information; (c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the 
supplementary information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information; 
and (d) to present the supplementary information with the audited basic financial statements, or if the 
supplementary information will not be presented with the audited basic financial statements, to make the 
audited basic financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information 
no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary information and our report thereon.1 
 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit. 
 
With respect to any nonattest services we perform,   

At the end of the year, we agree to perform the following: 
 Propose adjusting or correcting journal entries to be reviewed and approved by District 

management 
 Prepare the depreciation calculation to be reviewed and approved by District management 
 Prepare the full accrual/government-wide statements to be reviewed and approved by District 

management 
 Answer inquiries on specific accounting standards 

 
We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the District. However, we will provide 
advice and recommendations to assist management of the District in performing its responsibilities.  

Baker County Library District’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and 
performing all management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (c) 
evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the 
results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including 
monitoring ongoing activities. 

Our responsibilities and limitations of the engagement are as follows: 

We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional 
standards. 
 
This engagement is limited to the bookkeeping services and limited financial 
statement preparation previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional 
judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that 
could be construed as making management decisions or assuming management 
responsibilities, including determining account coding and approving journal 
entries. 

 
 

 



 

© 2020 CCH Incorporated and/or Its Affiliates. All Rights Reserved.        COR-201 Page 5 of 8 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of District’s basic financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the governing body of the District. We cannot provide assurance that 
unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify 
our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 
 
We also will issue a written report on the District’s compliance with Oregon Budget Law and Minimum 
Standards upon completion of our audit. 
 
Other 

We understand that your employees will locate any documents or support for any other transactions we 
select for testing. 
 
If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the basic financial statements and make reference to our 
firm, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing. 
You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is 
distributed.  
 
Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements 
published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to 
distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites 
or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document. 
 
Provisions of Engagement Administration, Timing and Fees 
 
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, 
and you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or 
intercepted communications. 
 
The timing of our audit will be scheduled for performance and completion as follows:  
 

 Begin Complete 

 
Document internal control and preliminary tests 

July 26 – 27 July 26-27 

 
Observe physical inventories (if necessary) 

 
NA 

 
NA 

 
Mail confirmations 

July 28 July 28 

 
Perform year-end audit procedures 

September 20 – 24 September 20-24 

 
Issue audit report 

 
End of October 

 
End of October 

 
Robert Gaslin is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. His responsibilities 
include supervising Gaslin Accounting CPA’s services performed as part of this engagement and signing 
or authorizing another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report. 

 



 

© 2020 CCH Incorporated and/or Its Affiliates. All Rights Reserved.        COR-201 Page 6 of 8 

Our fees are based on the amount of time required at various levels of responsibility, plus actual out-of-
pocket expenses. Invoices will be rendered every two weeks and are payable upon presentation. We 
estimate that our fee for the audit will be $7,900. We will notify you immediately of any circumstances 
we encounter that could significantly affect this initial fee estimate. Whenever possible, we will attempt 
to use District personnel to assist in the preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts. This effort 
could substantially reduce our time requirements and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit. Further, 
we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters 
of a routine nature. 
 
During the course of the audit we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, 
your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, 
either orally or in writing. 
 
You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become 
aware during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are 
issued. 
 
We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date 
of our report. 
 
At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the Board of Directors the following 
significant findings from the audit: 
 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices; 
 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 
 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 
 Disagreements with management, if any; 
 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, 

significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the 
financial reporting process; 

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of 
our audit procedures; 

 Representations we requested from management; 
 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 
 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of 

correspondence, with management. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Gaslin Accounting CPAs and constitutes 
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available 
to Oregon Secretary of State pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If 
requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of our personnel.  

 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement 
with, the arrangements for our audit of the basic financial statements including our respective 
responsibilities. 
 
 
 
 



 

© 2020 CCH Incorporated and/or Its Affiliates. All Rights Reserved.        COR-201 Page 7 of 8 

We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with 
you and your staff. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Gaslin Accounting CPAs PC                                                                                                                                      
2550 Broadway Street                                                                                                                                                  
Baker City, OR 97814 
 
 

*************************************************************** 
 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding. 
 
Baker County Library District 
 
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of Baker County Library District by: 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 






































